
 
 

PLANS COMMITTEE 
 

This meeting will be recorded and the sound recording subsequently made available via 
the Council’s website: charnwood.gov.uk/pages/committees 
 
Please also note that under the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 
that other people may film, record, tweet or blog from this meeting.  The use of any 
images or sound recordings is not under the Council’s control. 
 
 
 
To: Councillors Bentley (Vice-Chair), Campsall, Capleton, Charles, Forrest, Fryer (Chair), 

Gerrard, Grimley, Hamilton, Lowe, Ranson, Savage and Tillotson  
(For attention) 

 
All other members of the Council 

(For information) 
 

You are requested to attend the meeting of the Plans Committee to be held in the Preston 
Room, Woodgate Chambers, Woodgate, Loughborough on Thursday, 24th March 2022 at 
5.00 pm for the following business. 
 

 
 
Chief Executive 
 
Southfields 
Loughborough 
 
16th March 2022 
 

AGENDA 
  

1.   APOLOGIES 
 

 
 
2.   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

 
3 - 7 

 The Committee is asked to confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting 
held on 24th February 2022. 
 

  

Public Document Pack

Page 1

file:///C:/Users/karenw/AppData/local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/NU3M8P7G/charnwood.gov.uk/pages/committees


3.   QUESTIONS UNDER COMMITTEE PROCEDURE 12.8 
 

 

 No questions were submitted. 
  

4.   DISCLOSURES OF PECUNIARY AND PERSONAL INTERESTS 
 

 
 
5.   PLANNING APPLICATIONS 

 
8 - 33 

 The list of planning applications to be considered at the meeting is appended. 
  

6.   LIST OF APPLICATIONS DETERMINED UNDER DELEGATED 
POWERS 
 

34 - 46 

 A list of applications determined under powers delegated to officers for the period 
from 15th February 2022 to 11th March 2022 is attached at page 34. 

  
WHERE TO FIND WOODGATE CHAMBERS 
 
 
Woodgate Chambers 
70 Woodgate  
Loughborough 
Leicestershire 
LE11 2TZ 
 
 

Page 2



 

1 
 

Plans Committee - 24th February 2022 
Published – 4th March 2022  

PLANS COMMITTEE 
24TH FEBRUARY 2022 

 
PRESENT:  The Vice Chair in the Chair (Councillor Bentley) 
 Councillors Campsall, Capleton, Charles, Forrest, 

Gerrard, Hamilton, Lowe, Ranson, Savage, 
Tillotson, Murphy and Snartt 

  
Head of Planning and Regeneration 
Principal Solicitor - Planning, Property and 
Contracts 
Strategic Development Team Leader  
Principal Planning Officer  
Senior Planning Officer  
Planning Enforcement Officer  
Democratic Services Officer (EB) 

 
APOLOGIES: Councillors Fryer and Grimley 
 
The Chair stated that the meeting would be recorded and the sound recording 
subsequently made available via the Council’s website.  He also advised that, under 
the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014, other people may film, 
record, tweet or blog from this meeting, and the use of any such images or sound 
recordings was not under the Council’s control. 
 

50. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 27th January 2022 were confirmed as a correct 
record by those Councillors present at that meeting and signed . 
 

51. QUESTIONS UNDER COMMITTEE PROCEDURE 12.8  
 
No questions were submitted. 
 

52. DISCLOSURES OF PECUNIARY AND PERSONAL INTERESTS  
 
The following disclosures were made: 
 

(i) by Councillor Murphy – in relation to application P/21/0535/2 - he would 
be speaking in his capacity as Ward Councillor and therefore would not 
take part in the meeting discussion or voting on that item.  

(ii) by Councillor Gerrard – in relation to application P/20/2349/2 – she was 
a Ward Councillor for the neighbouring Ward but came to the meeting 
with an open mind. 

(iii) by all Committee Members – in relation to application P/20/2199/2 – they 
had been lobbied on the application and received emails and letters on 
the application – they approached the meeting with an open mind. 

(iv) by Councillor Snartt – in relation to application P/20/2349/2 – he had 
asked a question about Neighbourhood Plans at Full Council and had 
received emails as a result. He came to the meeting with an open mind. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



 

2 
 

Plans Committee - 24th February 2022 
Published – 4th March 2022  

(v) by Councillor Snartt – in relation to application P/21/1260/2 – he had 
spoken on the application at the meeting of the Plans Committee on 1st 
December 2021.  He would leave the room during the consideration of 
this application. 

(vi) by Councillor Snartt – in relation to application P/21/1017/2 – he was a 
long-standing supporter of Leicester City Football Club but came to the 
meeting with an open mind. 

(vii) by Councillor Bentley – in relation to enforcement report E/21/0186 and 
application P/20/2349/2 – he had an interest in a Sustainable Urban 
Extension north of Birstall and the land had been bought by the 
developers Barwoods and Davidson Developments Ltd – he had not had 
contact with the developers on the application or enforcement report 
being considered and came to the meeting with an open mind. 

(viii) by Councillor Ranson – in relation to application P/21/0535/2 – she was 
the Ward Councillor for Sileby Ward.   

(ix) by Councillor Ranson – in relation to enforcement report E/21/0186 – 
she had a family member who was in dispute with the developer 
Barwoods.  She left the room during the consideration of this application. 

 
Post-meeting note:  The declarations made by Councillor Ranson were made when 
the items in question were considered. 
 

53. PLANNING APPLICATIONS  
 
Reports of the Head of Planning and Regeneration, setting out applications for 
planning permission, were submitted (items 1 to 6 in the appendix to the agenda filed 
with these minutes).  Additional Items reports in respect of applications P/20/2199/2, 
P/21/0535/2, P/21/1260/2 and P/21/0010/2 were also submitted (also filed with these 
minutes). 
 
It was proposed by the Vice-Chair in the Chair and seconded by Councillor Murphy 
that Councillor Snartt act as Vice-Chair for the meeting. 
 
The Committee was advised that there had been a late request to speak in respect of 
application P/21/1017/2 by Niall Alcock and Adrian Franks on behalf of Seagrave 
Parish Council.  The Committee was asked if they were happy to let Niall Alcock and 
Adrian Franks speak on behalf of the items and there were no objections to allowing 
Niall Alcock and Adrian Franks to speak. The committee was also advised that since 
publication of the extras report,  a submission by a member of the Queniborough 
Neighbourhood Plan Steering Committee was received which raised that close liaison 
was held with the Council regarding housing and referred to the basic conditions 
statement and disagreed with the Council’s legal advice and reference to it not 
obtaining a housing figure. 
 
In accordance with the procedure for public speaking at meetings, the following 
objector, applicants or their representatives and representative of a parish council 
attended the meeting and expressed their views: 
 

(i) James Mattley (objector) and Carl Stott (agent) in respect of application 
P/20/2199/2; 

Page 4



 

3 
 

Plans Committee - 24th February 2022 
Published – 4th March 2022  

(ii) Clare Plant (agent) and Stephen Wright (on behalf of Queniborough Parish 
Council) in respect of application P/20/2349/2; 

(iii) David Pendle (agent) and Elizabeth Jones (on behalf of Sileby Parish 
Council) in respect of application P/21/0535/2; and 

(iv) Niall Alcock (agent) and Cllr Adrian Franks (on behalf of Seagrave Parish 
Council) in respect of application P/21/1017/2. 

 
In accordance with the procedure for Borough Councillors speaking at Plans 
Committee meetings, the following Councillors attended the meeting and expressed 
their views: 
 

(i) Councillor Smidowicz in respect of application P/20/2199/2; 
(ii) Councillor Grimley in respect of application P/20/2349/2; 
(iii) Councillor Murphy in respect of application P/21/0535/2; and 
(iv) Councillor Poland in respect of application P/21/1017/2. 

 
At the approval of the Vice-Chair in the Chair, enforcement report E/21/0186 was 
considered prior to planning application P/21/0010/2. 
 
RESOLVED 
 

1. that, in respect of application P/20/2199/2 (Bowbridge Homes 
Nanpantan, Land off Leconfield Road, Nanpantan), planning permission 
be refused as the proposed development would fail to protect and 
enhance the landscape character of the area, contrary to the 
requirements of CS11 and NPPF and the proposed development would 
result in an adverse biodiversity impact, contrary to CS13 and NPPF and 

 
Officers be given delegated authority to devise the wording for the 
refusal. 

 
2. that, in respect of application P/20/2349/2 (Davidson’s Developments 

Limited, Land off Boonton Meadow Way, including No 65 Glebe Road, 
Queniborough), planning permission be granted subject to the 
conditions, reasons and advice notes set out in the report of the Head of 
Planning and Regeneration and subject to the prior completion of a 
Section 106 legal agreement  in accordance with Recommendation A set 
out in the report of the Head of Planning and Regeneration; 

 
3. that, in respect of application P/21/0535/2 (Owl Partnerships Ltd & 

Nottingham Community Housing Association Ltd & Inside Land (South) 
Ltd. Land off Homefield Road Sileby Leicestershire LE12 7LZ), planning 
permission be granted subject to the conditions, reasons and advice 
notes set out in the report of the Head of Planning and Regeneration, 
and the amendment set out in the Extras Report and subject to the prior 
completion of a Section 106 legal agreement in accordance with the 
amended Recommendation A  set out in the Extras Report;  

 
4. that, in respect of application P/21/1260/2 (Penland Estates Ltd, RV 

Millington Ltd, Sarah Higgins and Gavin Higgins, Land at Ashby Road, 

Page 5



 

4 
 

Plans Committee - 24th February 2022 
Published – 4th March 2022  

Markfield), the Committee’s resolution dated 1st December 2021 [38 (1.) 
refers] be amended and planning permission be granted subject to the 
conditions, reasons and advice notes set out in the report of the Head of 
Planning and Regeneration, , and subject to the prior completion of a 
Section 106 legal agreement in accordance with Recommendation A set 
out in the report of the Head of Planning and Regeneration; 

 
5. that, in respect of application P/21/1017/2 (Leicester City Football Club, 

Football Training Ground Park Hill Lane, Seagrave Leicestershire LE12 
7NG), planning permission be granted subject to the conditions, reasons 
and advice notes set out in the report of the Head of Planning and 
Regeneration; 

 
6. that, in respect of application P/21/0010/2 (Mrs. Z Wadi, 124 Maple Road 

South Loughborough Leicestershire LE11 2JR), planning permission be 
granted subject to the conditions, reasons and advice notes set out in 
the report of the Head of Planning and Regeneration and the 
amendment in the Extras Report. 

 
54. PLANNING ENFORCEMENT REPORTS  

 
An enforcement report of the Head of Planning and Regeneration was submitted (Item 
6 on the agenda filed with these minutes).   
 
In accordance with the procedure for public speaking at meetings, the following 
objector, applicants or their representatives and representative of a parish council 
attended the meeting and expressed their views: 
 

(i) Matthew Twigger (objector)  
 
In accordance with the procedure for Borough Councillors speaking at Plans 
Committee meetings, the following Councillors attended the meeting and expressed 
their views: 
 

(i) Councillor Taylor 
 
RESOLVED that, in respect of enforcement report E/21/0186 (Land Off Cropston 
Road, Anstey, Leicestershire, LE7 7FF) no further action be taken subject to the 
reasons set out in the report of the Head of Planning and Regeneration; 
 
 

55. LIST OF APPLICATIONS DETERMINED UNDER DELEGATED POWERS  
 
A list of applications determined under powers delegated to officers for the period from 
17th January 2022 to 14th February 2022 was submitted (item 7 on the agenda filed 
with these minutes). 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



 

5 
 

Plans Committee - 24th February 2022 
Published – 4th March 2022  

NOTES: 
 
1. No reference may be made to these minutes at the next available Ordinary Council 

meeting unless notice to that effect is given to the Democratic Services Manager 
by five members of the Council by noon on the fifth working day following 
publication of these minutes. 
 

2. These minutes are subject to confirmation as a correct record at the next meeting 
of the Plans Committee. 

Page 7



Charnwood Borough Council 
 

Plans Committee – Thursday 24 March 2022 
Index of Committee Items 

 
Item Application 

No 
Applicant and Location, 
Description 

Recommendation Page 

     
1 P/20/1437/2 Sandy Kay Ltd 

Land to the West of Flanders Close 
Quorn 
 
 
Erection of 3 no. dwellings and 
associated works.  

  Grant Conditionally 9 

     

Page 8

Agenda Item 5



Item No. 1 
 
Application Reference Number P/20/1437/2 
 
Application Type: Full Date Valid: 12.08.2020 
Applicant: Sandy Kay Ltd 
Proposal: Erection of 3 no. dwellings and associated works 
Location: Land to the West of Flanders Close, Quorn 
Parish: Quorn Ward: Quorn 
Case Officer: 
 

Harry White Tel No: 01509 634579 

 
This application is brought to Plans Committee at the request of Councillor Jane Hunt MP. 
The grounds for the request are based on loss of privacy and the overbearing impact of 
the new housing on a small site with restricted access and services to the properties, 
putting a strain on the facilities offered to the nearby properties. 
 
Description of the Proposal and application site 
 
This application seeks planning permission for the construction of three detached 
properties on land to the west of Flanders Close in Quorn.  
 
Plot 1 would be a two storey three-bedroom detached dwellinghouse, and includes a 
single car detached garage. This plot would have an internal floor area of approximately 
160m2, and a garden size of approximately 195m2. 
 
Plot 2 would be a two storey cottage style three-bedroom dwellinghouse, and includes an 
integrated single car garage. This plot would have an internal floor area of approximately 
126m2, and a garden size of approximately 185m2.  
 
Plot 3 would be a two and a half storey five/six-bedroom dwellinghouse, with integrated 
annexe and garage for two cars. This plot would have an internal floor area of 
approximately 325m2, and a garden size of approximately 400m2. 
 
Residential properties, nos. 18-32 (even) Loughborough Road, no. 16 Loughborough 
Road and nos. 10 and 12 Flanders Close, and no. 36 Loughborough Road adjoin the 
northern, eastern and western boundaries of the application site respectively. Adjoining 
the southern boundary of the application site is a wooded area of land adjacent to the 
Poultney Brook. 
 
The application site has previously been used as allotments. The Quorn allotments have 
since relocated to the north of Quorn following the creation of the Flanders Close 
development. 
 
The south-western corner of the application site is adjacent to trees which are protected 
by a Tree Preservation Order (reference 1 118 (exc.), which was designated in March 
1988. 
 
The application site comprises of land which formed part an allotment area adjoining the 
residential development scheme at Flanders Close under Planning Permission reference 

Page 9



P/13/0911/2, as amended. To the west of the application site, on the opposite side of the 
Poultney Brook is Tom Long’s Nature reserve, an LRWT Local Wildlife Site. The 
application site has an active Badger Sett within it. 
 
Notwithstanding the site’s riparian setting adjacent to the Poultney Brook, the application 
site itself falls within Flood Zone 1, where there is a low probability of flooding.   
 
Access to the application site is achieved by an existing vehicular access on Flanders 
Close, which is a private road. This access is located between nos. 10 & 11 Flanders 
Close. 
 
 
Development Plan Policies  
The Development Plan for Charnwood currently consists of the Charnwood Local 
Plan Core Strategy 2011-2028, Saved Policies of the Borough of Charnwood Local 
Plan (2004), the Leicestershire Minerals Core Strategy and Development Control 
Policies Document (2009), and the Leicestershire Waste Core Strategy and 
Development Control Policies document (2009). The Quorn Neighbourhood Plan (2019) 
also forms part of the Development Plan and is relevant to this application. 
 
The Core Strategy was adopted on 9th November 2015 and set out the overarching 
aims and objectives for development in the Borough. This included provision for 
13,940 dwellings over the plan period, equivalent to 820 dwellings per annum (dpa). 
As of 9th November 2020, the Core Strategy became more than 5 years old. As 
required by the National Planning Policy Framework paragraph 74, where Local 
Plans are more than 5 years old local housing need is to be assessed based on the 
standard methodology set out in national planning guidance. The standard methodology 
requires delivery of 1,111 dpa.  On that basis, and as of March 2021, 
the Council has a 3.34-year housing land supply.  The implications of the housing 
supply position on the planning balance to be applied to this planning decision, along 
with the weight to be given to Development Plan policies is set out within this report.   
 
Development Plan policies relevant to the determination of this planning application 
are set out below. 
 
Charnwood Local Plan Core Strategy (adopted 9 November 2015) 
Policy CS1 – Development Strategy – Sets out a growth hierarchy for the borough 
that sequentially guides development towards the most sustainable settlements.  
This identifies Quorn as a “Service Centre” a settlement that has access to a good 
range of services or facilities compared to other settlements.  
 
Policy CS2 – High Quality Design – requires developments to make a positive 
contribution to Charnwood, reinforcing a sense of place. Development should 
respect and enhance the character of the area, having regard to scale, massing, 
height, landscape, layout, materials and access, and protect the amenity of people 
who live or work nearby. 
 
Policy CS3 Strategic Housing Needs - supports an appropriate housing mix for the 
Borough and sets targets for affordable homes provision to meet need.   
 

Page 10



Policy CS13 Biodiversity and Geodiversity - seeks to conserve and enhance the 
natural environment and expects development proposals to consider and take 
account of the impacts on biodiversity and geodiversity, particularly with regard to 
recognised features.   
 
Policy CS16 Sustainable Construction and Energy – encourages sustainable design and 
construction, the use of brownfield land and land at low risk of flooding and provides 
suitable waste provision. 
  
Policy CS17 Sustainable Travel – Seeks to increase sustainable travel patterns and 
ensure major development is aligned with this.   
 
Policy CS25 Presumption in favour of sustainable development - echoes the 
sentiments of the National Planning Policy Framework in terms of sustainable 
development. 
  
Borough of Charnwood Local Plan (adopted 12 January 2004) (saved policies) 
Where they have not been superseded by Core Strategy policies previous Local 
Plan policies remain part of the development plan. In relation to this proposal the 
relevant ones are: 
 
Policy ST/2 Limits to Development – this policy sets out limits to development for 
settlements within Charnwood. 
 
Policy EV/1 Design - This seeks to ensure a high standard of design and 
developments which respect the character of the area, nearby occupiers, and which 
are compatible in mass, scale, layout, whilst using landforms and other natural 
features. Developments should meet the needs of all groups and create safe places 
for people.  
 
Policy TR/18 Parking in New Development - This seeks to set the maximum 
standards by which development should provide for off street car parking. 
 
Quorn Neighbourhood Plan (2019) 
 
POLICY S1: SETTLEMENT BOUNDARY - Development proposals within the 
Neighbourhood Plan area will be supported on sites wholly within the settlement boundary 
as defined in Figure 2 of the Plan where the proposal fully complies with all of the policies 
in this Neighbourhood Plan. 
 
POLICY S2: DESIGN GUIDANCE - New development should reflect the guidance in the 
current Quorn Village Design Statement. 
 
POLICY H3: HOUSING MIX – Any new housing development proposals should provide a 
mixture of housing types specifically to meet identified local needs in Quorn. Support will 
be given to dwellings of 1, 2 and 3 bedrooms and to homes suitable for older people and 
those with restricted mobility. 4-plus bedroom units may be included in the mix of 
dwellings and where they are included within the overall composition of the site, they 
should be in a clear minority to the number of 1,2 and 3 bedroom houses. 
 

Page 11



POLICY H5: WINDFALL DEVELOPMENT - Small residential development proposals 
within the Settlement Boundary will be supported where they are well-designed, and 
comply with the relevant requirements set out in other policies in the Development Plan 
and where such development: 
 

a) Comprises a restricted gap in the continuity of existing frontage buildings or on 
other sites within the built-up area of Quorn or where the site is closely surrounded 
by existing buildings; 

b) Retains existing important natural boundaries such as trees, hedges and streams; 
c) Does not reduce garden space to an extent where it adversely impacts on the 

character of the area, or the amenity of neighbours and the occupiers of the 
dwelling; 

d) It provides for a safe vehicular and pedestrian access to the site; and 
e) Does not result in an unacceptable loss of amenity for neighbouring occupiers by 

reason of loss of privacy, loss of daylight, visual intrusion or noise. 
 

POLICY ENV 4: TREES, WOODLAND AND HEDGES – Development proposals that 
have an unacceptable adverse effect on trees, woodland and hedges of environmental 
(biodiversity, historical, arboricultural) significance, or of landscape or amenity value, will 
not be supported. New development should be designed to retain such trees and hedges 
wherever possible. Where the loss of trees and hedges cannot be avoided, developers will 
be required to plant replacement trees and/or hedges on site or to provide compensatory 
planting elsewhere in the Parish. 

 
Other material considerations  
 
The Charnwood Local Plan: Pre-submission Draft (July 2021) 
 
The local planning authority is in the process of preparing a new local plan for the 
borough for the period up to 2037. The new local plan will include strategic and 
detailed policies for the period 2019-2037 and was approved by Council on 21 June 2021 
for consultation and then submission to the Secretary of State for an Examination in 
Public. The Draft Charnwood Local Plan underwent a six-week pre-submission 
consultation period that ran from 12th July to 23rd August 2021. 
This document sets out the Council’s draft strategic and detailed policies for the period 
2019-37. The Plan was submitted for Examination on December 3rd 2021 although it’s 
policies carry limited weight at the current time. 
 
The Pre-submission Draft Local Plan proposes site allocations for development to meet 
the strategic aims of the Borough. This includes the allocation of residential development 
sites based on an assessment including housing need, availability of services and 
facilities, landscape impact and deliverability. The Draft Plan proposes to allocate one site 
at Quorn at East of Loughborough Road (HA50) for 75 dwellings.   
 
As noted above, the emerging Local Plan carries limited weight at the current time. 
  
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF 2021)   
 
The NPPF is a material consideration in planning decisions. The NPPF contains a 
presumption in favour of sustainable development. 

Page 12



  
The Framework states that the purpose of the planning system is to contribute to the 
achievement of sustainable development and that there are 3 dimensions to this;  
 
• An economic role – contributing to building a strong, responsive and competitive 
economy, by ensuring that sufficient land of the right type is available in the right places 
to support growth and innovation  
• A social role – supporting strong, vibrant and healthy communities by providing the 
supply of housing required to meet the needs of present and future generations, and by 
creating a high quality built development with accessible local services;  
• An environmental role – contributing to protecting and enhancing our natural, built and 
historic environment. 
 
Paragraph 7 states that the purpose of the planning system is to contribute to the 
achievement of an environmental objective – contributing to protecting and enhancing our 
natural, built and historic environment. 
 
Paragraph 10 states at the heart of the Framework is a presumption in favour of 
sustainable development. 
 
Paragraph 11 sets out the presumption in favour of sustainable development and makes it 
clear that where there is an under-supply of housing land, the most important policies for 
the determination of housing proposals would be considered out of date. 
 
Paragraphs 15-33 set out that the planning system should be genuinely plan-led and that 
succinct and up-to-date plans should provide a positive vision for the future of each area; 
a framework for addressing housing needs and other economic, social and environmental 
priorities and a platform for local people to shape their surroundings.  Paragraph 31 states 
that the preparation and review of all policies should be underpinned by relevant and up-
to-date evidence.  
 
Paragraph 38 indicates that local planning authorities should approach decisions on 
proposed development in a positive and creative way and work proactively with applicants 
to secure developments that will improve the economic, social and environmental 
conditions of the area.  Decision-makers should seek to approve applications for 
sustainable development where possible. 
 
Paragraph 47 of the NPPF states that planning law requires that applications for planning 
permission should be determined in accordance with the development plan, unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise.  Decisions on applications should be made as 
quickly as possible, and within statutory timescales unless a longer period has been 
agreed by the applicant in writing.  
 
Paragraph 55 sets out that local planning authorities should consider whether otherwise 
unacceptable development could be made acceptable through the use of conditions or 
planning obligations. Planning obligations should only be used where it is not possible to 
address unacceptable impacts through a planning condition.  
 

Page 13



Paragraph 56 states that planning conditions should be kept to a minimum and only 
imposed where they are necessary, relevant to planning and to the development to be 
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. 
 
Paragraph 60 states that to support the government’s objective of significantly boosting 
the supply of homes, it is important that a sufficient amount and variety of land can come 
forward where it is needed, that the needs of groups with specific housing requirements 
are addressed and that land with permission is developed without unnecessary delay. 
 
Paragraph 62 sets out that the size, type and tenure of housing need for difference groups 
in the community should be assessed and reflected in planning policies. 
 
Paragraph 69 explains that small and medium sized sites can make an important 
contribution to meeting the housing requirement of an area, and are often built out quickly.  
The paragraph then goes on to explain how such sites might be promoted. 
 
Paragraph 71 sets out that plans should consider the case for setting out policies to resist 
inappropriate development of residential gardens, for example, where development would 
cause harm to the local area.  
 
Paragraph 74 sets out that local planning authorities are expected to maintain a 5 year 
housing land supply and should identify and annually update their supply of specific 
deliverable sites as measured against the overall housing requirement for the plan period. 
This should include a buffer and in Charnwood this is an additional 5% in order to ensure 
choice and competition in the market for land. 
  
Chapter 8 of the NPPF relates to the promotion of healthy and safe communities and sets 
out how planning policies and decisions should aim to achieve healthy, inclusive and safe 
places. 
 
Paragraph 111 states that development should only be prevented or refused on highway 
grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual 
cumulative impacts on the road network would be severe.  
 
Paragraph 119 states that planning policies and decisions should promote an effective 
use of land in meeting the need for homes and other uses, while safeguarding and 
improving the environment and ensuring safe and healthy living conditions.  Strategic 
policies should set out a clear strategy for accommodating objectively assessed needs, in 
a way that makes as much use as possible of previously-developed or ‘brownfield’ land.  
 
Chapter 12 (Paras 126-136) of the NPPF concerns itself with achieving well-designed 
places and sets out that good design is a key aspect of sustainable development. The use 
of visual tools and design codes is encouraged as is the development of design policies 
alongside local communities and neighbourhood plans.   
 
Paragraph 134 states that permission should be refused for development of poor design 
that fails to take the opportunities available for improving the character and quality of an 
area and the way it functions, taking into account any local design standards or style 
guides in plans or supplementary planning documents.  Local planning authorities should 
also seek to ensure that the quality of approved development is not materially diminished 

Page 14



between the permission and completion, as a result of changes being made to the 
permitted scheme. 
 
Paragraph 135 states that, in determining applications, great weight should be given to 
outstanding or innovative designs which promote high levels of sustainability or help raise 
the standard of design more generally in an area, so long as they fit in with the overall 
form and layout of their surroundings.  
   
Paragraph 174 states that the planning system should contribute to and enhance the 
natural and local environment and sets out how this might be achieved.   
 
Paragraph 180 states that in determining applications for planning permission, local 
planning authorities should aim to conserve and enhance biodiversity by applying the 
principles it then sets out. 
 
Paragraph 185 requires that decisions on planning applications should ensure that new 
development is appropriate for its location taking into account the likely effects of pollution 
on health, living conditions and the natural environment and the sensitivity of the site. 
 
The Equality Act 2010 
 
This Act requires local planning authorities, when making strategic decisions about the 
exercise of their functions to have regard to the desirability of reducing socio-economic 
inequalities in society.  It consolidates 7 Acts including the Disability Discrimination Act. 
Whilst the accessible design of buildings is regulated by Part M of the Building 
Regulations, the Equality Act does require ‘reasonable adjustments’ to be made when 
providing access to goods, facilities, services and premises and this also applies to the 
design of proposed development. In terms of planning decisions, there is a need to have 
‘due regard’ to the impact of planning application decisions and policies on anyone with a 
Protected Characteristic who may be affected by the decision. 
 
National Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) 
 
The National Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) reinforces and provides additional 
guidance on the policy requirements of the Framework and provides extensive guidance 
on design and other planning objectives that can be achieved through getting good 
design. These include the consideration of local character, landscaping setting, safe, 
connected and efficient streets, crime prevention, security measures, access and 
inclusion, efficient use of natural resources and cohesive and vibrant neighbourhoods.  
 
ID 26 - Paragraphs 001-003 states that good design matters and what this can achieve 
through good plan making.  Paragraph 004 notes that weight can be given to outstanding 
or innovative design and developments of poor quality design should be refused.  
Paragraph 007 states that planning should promote local character.  New development 
should be integrated within existing surroundings.  
 
National Design Guide (2019) 
 
The National Planning Policy Framework makes clear that creating high quality buildings 
and places is fundamental to what the planning and development process should achieve. 

Page 15



This design guide, the National Design Guide, illustrates how well-designed places that 
are beautiful, enduring and successful can be achieved in practice. It forms part of the 
Government’s collection of planning practice guidance and should be read alongside the 
separate planning practice guidance on design process and tools.  
 
As well as helping to inform development proposals and their assessment by local 
planning authorities, it supports paragraph 130 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework which states that permission should be refused for development of poor 
design that fails to take the opportunities available for improving the character and quality 
of an area and the way it functions. 
 
Housing and Economic Development Needs Assessment (HEDNA) 2017 
 
The Housing and Economic Development Needs Assessment (HEDNA) has looked at a 
wealth of evidence, including population, household and economic growth projections, to 
assess the need for housing and employment land over the next 20 years. The study is an 
important part of the evidence base for the Strategic Growth Plan. It will also form part of 
the evidence base for Local Plans and will feed into the Strategic Economic Plan being 
revised by the LLEP. 
 
The HEDNA looks at projections based on past population and demographic trends, with 
adjustments made (where necessary) for higher migration to support economic growth, 
and/or to address affordability issues, responding to an analysis of market signals and 
evidence of the need for affordable housing. The HEDNA also identifies the appropriate 
mix of homes of different sizes needed in the market and affordable sectors and 
concludes that the ideal mix of market housing in Charnwood should be as follows: 
 
• 1 bed – 0-10% 
• 2 bed – 25-35% 
• 3 bed – 45-55% 
• 4 bed – 10-20%  
 
The Leicestershire Highways Design Guide (2018) 
 
This is a guide for use by developers and published by Leicestershire County Council 
and provides information to developers and local planning authorities to assist in the 
design of road layouts.  The purpose of the guidance is to help achieve development that 
provides for the safe and free movement of all road users, including cars, lorries, 
pedestrians, cyclists and public transport.  Design elements are encouraged which provide 
road layouts which meet the needs of all users and restrain vehicle dominance, create an 
environment that is safe for all road users and in which people are encouraged to walk, 
cycle and use public transport and feel safe doing so; and help create quality 
developments in which to live, work and play.  The document also sets out the quantum of 
off-street car parking required to be provided in new housing development. 
 
The Crime and Disorder Act 1998  
 
This places a duty on the local planning authority to do all that it reasonably can to prevent 
crime and disorder in its area.  The potential impact on community safety is therefore a 
material consideration in the determination of planning applications. 

Page 16



  
Supplementary Planning Document - Charnwood Design (January 2020) 
 
This document sets out the Borough Council’s expectations in terms of securing high 
quality design in all new development.  Schemes should respond well to local character, 
have positive impacts on the environment and be adaptable to meet future needs and 
provide spaces and buildings that help improve people’s quality of life.  The document is a 
material consideration in the determination of planning applications. 
 
Quorn Village Design Statement (2008) 
 
This Statement seeks to ensure that future developments preserve the essential character 
of Quorn and to suggest opportunities for appropriate restoration or enhancement. Its aim 
is to safeguard the integrity and independence of the village so that succeeding 
generations will continue to enjoy, understand and defend its historic foundation. 
 
The Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (CIL) (as amended)  
The Regulations set out the process and procedure relating to infrastructure 
requirements. Regulation 122 states that it must relate in scale and kind to the 
development. Regulation 123 precludes repeat requests for funding of the same 
items (pooling). The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) places the Government’s 
policy tests on the use of planning obligations into law. It is unlawful for a planning 
obligation to be a reason for granting planning permission when determining a 
planning application for a development, or part of a development, that is capable of 
being charged CIL, whether or not there is a local CIL in operation, if the obligation 
does not meet all of the following tests: 1. necessary to make the development 
acceptable in planning terms; 2. directly related to the development; and 3. fairly and 
reasonably related in scale and kind to the development 
 
Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017 
(as amended) 
The Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations set out the parameters, 
procedures and Regulatory detail associated with the screening, scoping and 
preparation of an Environmental Statement and consideration of significant 
environmental impacts of development. As this application is for a site of less than 5 
hectares and is for less than 150 dwellings it does not stand to be screened for an 
Environmental Impact Assessment.  
 
Housing Supplementary Planning Document (adopted May 2017 – updated 
December 2017)  
The SPD provides guidance on affordable housing to support Core Strategy Policy 
CS3.   
 
Relevant Planning History 
 

Reference Description Decision & Date 

P/09/2032/2 Demolition of no.8 Loughborough Road and the 
construction of access road to serve 21 
dwellings (Outline) 

Refusal – 11/02/2010 

Page 17



P/10/2834/2 Demolition of no.10 Loughborough Road and 
the construction of access road to serve 13 
dwellings. 

Refusal – 18/08/2011 

P/11/1576/2 Demolition of no.10 Loughborough Road and 
the construction of access road to serve 13 
dwellings. 

Permission – 13-08/2012 

P/13/0911/2 Variation of condition 14 of P/11/1576/2 to 
amend plots 2 to 12 

Permission – 01/08/2013 

P/13/2234/2 Variation of condition 14 to application 
P/13/0911/2 to amend plots 1, 5, 10 and 13 

Permission – 04/02/2014 

P/14/0013/2 Variation of condition 14 of P/13/2234/2 to allow 
amendments to garage on plot 7. 

Permission – 02/04/2014 
 

P/14/1521/2 Variation of condition 14 on application 
P/13/0911/2 to allow amendments to plot 9 

Permission – 11/11/2014 

P/19/1784/2 Erection of 4 no. dwellings (Advice) Advised - 24/09/2019 

 
 
Consultation responses 
The table below sets out a summary of the responses that have been received from 
consultees with regard to the application.  Please note that these can be read in full on the 
Council’s website.  
 
 

Consultee Responses 

Ward Councillors Cllr Jane Hunt has requested the application be called in 
to the Plans Committee. The grounds for the request are 
based on loss of privacy and the overbearing impact of the 
new housing on small site with restricted access and 
services to the properties, putting a strain on the facilities 
offered to the nearby properties. 
 
Cllr Richard Shepherd supports the call-in request. 

Charnwood Borough 
Council – Ecology 

No objections, subject to the provision of a S106 
Agreement to secure funding of £66,345 for wildlife 
projects in the surrounding area. 

Charnwood Borough 
Council – Trees 

No comments have been received 

Charnwood Borough 
Council – Open 
Spaces 

No comments have been received 

Charnwood Borough 
Council – 
Environmental Health 

No objections. 

Quorn Parish Council Supports the calling in of this application and agrees with 
the concerns raised by Cllr Jane Hunt. It also asks that the 
possible ecological impact of the proposed development 
on the Tom Long’s Meadow nature reserve be taken into 
account as well as the likely extra traffic that the additional 

Page 18



housing would generate for the site’s junction with 
Loughborough Road 

The Local Highway 
Authority 

No objections. 

Leicestershire County 
Council Minerals 
Planning Authority 

No objections. 

 
Other comments received 
Objection letters have been received from 16 addresses in Quorn.  One objection was 
received from an anonymous address.   The list below summarises the areas of concern 
that have been raised by residents with regard to the application.  Please note that 
resident’s comments can be read in full on the Council’s website at: 
https://portal.charnwood.gov.uk/Northgate/PlanningExplorerAA/ApplicationSearch.aspx  
 
 

• The principle of developing a greenfield site  

• Design, layout and impact upon the character of the area 

• Impact on neighbouring amenity  

• Impact upon the highway network  

• Biodiversity 

• Refuse collection 

• Other matters 
 
Non-planning matters that have been raised:- 
 

• Covenants 

• Ownership of the land 

• Upkeep of private road 

• Sewerage requirements 

• Pressure on village services 
 
Consideration of the Planning Issues 
 

• Principle of the Proposed development 

• Design  

• Amenity impacts 

• Highway Impact 

• Ecology and Biodiversity 
 
Principle of the Proposed development 
The vision for the Borough as set out in the Charnwood Local Plan 2011-2028 Core 
Strategy (2015) sets out that by the end of the plan period Charnwood will be one of the 
most desirable places to live, work and visit in the East Midlands.  To achieve this, 
development will have been managed to improve the economy, quality of life and the 
environment. 
 
The starting point for decision making on all planning applications is that they must be 
made in accordance with the adopted Development Plan unless material considerations 

Page 19

https://portal.charnwood.gov.uk/Northgate/PlanningExplorerAA/ApplicationSearch.aspx


indicate otherwise. The most relevant policies for the determination of this application are 
listed above and are contained within the Development Plan for Charnwood which 
comprises the Charnwood Local Plan 2011-2028 Core Strategy (2015), those “saved” 
policies within the Borough of Charnwood Local Plan 1991-2026 (2004) which have not 
been superseded by the Core Strategy and the Quorn Neighbourhood Plan (2019).  It is 
acknowledged that the Core Strategy and the Local Plan are over 5 years old; therefore, it 
is important to take account of changing circumstances affecting the area, or any relevant 
changes in national policy.  With the exception of those policies which relate to the supply 
of housing, the relevant policies listed above are up to date and compliant with national 
advice.  Accordingly, there is no reason to reduce the weight given to them.  
  
Policy CS1 of the Core Strategy represents the strategic vision of the Borough and is an 
expression of a sustainable growth pattern.  It takes the form of a hierarchical, sequential 
approach guiding development first to the northern edge of Leicester, then to 
Loughborough and Shepshed before directing development to the smaller towns and 
villages.  In doing to, it provides for at least 3,000 new homes within or adjoining the 7 
Service Centres, including Quorn.   
 
The proposal is not in conflict with policies which seek to restrict the supply of housing. 
The site is within the settlement boundary of Quorn, as defined in the Neighbourhood Plan 
policy S1.  The provision of housing within the settlement boundary of a sustainable 
settlement and at a time when new homes are most needed, is considered to be a 
significant benefit of the scheme. The proposal is considered to comply with policy CS1. 
 
Policy S1 of the Quorn Neighbourhood Plan (QNP) sets out that development proposals 
within the settlement boundary that fully comply with all policies of the QNP will be 
supported. Therefore, provided the proposal meets all policies in the QNP it is acceptable 
in principle. 
 
Policy H3 of the Quorn Neighbourhood Plan outlines that proposals should provide a 
mixture of house types to meet a localised identified need. In this case, it is understood 
that there is a need for smaller-sized dwellings of up to 3-bedrooms within Quorn, which 
are suitable for residents wishing to downsize, providing homes for small families and 
those entering the housing market and providing homes suitable for older people. 
Dwellings of 4 or more bedrooms should represent a clear minority in any residential 
scheme proposed in line with the requirements of Policy H3. In this case, 2 no. 3-bedroom 
and 1 no. 5/6-bedroom dwellings are proposed. Therefore, the proposed housing mix 
would meet this housing need and comply with policy H3.  
 
In summary, the Development Plan is supportive of the proposal as it is windfall 
development within the defined limits to development of Quorn, and proposes an 
appropriate mix of housing. To meet policy S1 of the QNP, all policies of the QNP will 
need to be met, and this is discussed in the following sections.      
 
The NPPF is a material consideration.  The Council is currently unable to demonstrate a 5 
year supply of housing land (3.34 years at 31/3/21) and some of the key policies relating 
to the provision of housing are more than 5 years old and considered out of date, and 
attract reduced weight in terms of decision making on proposals. Accordingly, Policy CS1 
carries only moderate weight.  The shortfall in the supply of deliverable housing sites also 
means that, in accordance with the presumption in favour of sustainable development (at 

Page 20



Paragraph 11d of the NPPF), any adverse impacts caused by the proposal must 
significantly and demonstrably outweigh its benefits for planning permission to be refused 
and the ‘tilted balance’ is engaged (paragraph 11d)ii)). 
 
Part i) of Paragraph 11d sets out that there are NPPF policies which protect areas or 
assets, this can be a clear reason to refuse an application and these are generally 
nationally designated areas such as SSSI’s, although local green space and areas of 
archaeological interest equivalent to ancient monuments can be included. In this case, the 
land benefits from no special designations which would be lost as a result of the proposal 
and so part i) of paragraph 11d does not apply.   
 
Therefore, it is concluded that the proposal is acceptable in principle in accordance with 
Policy CS1 of the Core Strategy and policies S1 and H3 of the Quorn Neighbourhood 
Plan, subject to the proposal complying with all other relevant policy requirements.  The 
provision of housing is a positive of the scheme to be weighed in the overall planning 
balance.  
 
Design  
 
Policy CS2 of the Core Strategy requires new developments to respect and enhance the 
character of the area and saved Policy EV/1 supports development that is of a design, 
scale, layout and mass compatible with the locality and uses materials appropriate to the 
locality.   
 
Policy S2 of the Quorn Neighbourhood Plan sets out that new development will be 
supported where it respects the character or appearance of the neighbourhood area, and 
where appropriate, incorporates vernacular building materials. 
 
Policy H5 of the Quorn Neighbourhood Plan states that small residential developments 
within the settlement boundary will be supported where they are well designed, and 
comply with the relevant requirements set out in other policies in the Development Plan 
and where the development: 

a) Comprises a restricted gap in the continuity of the existing frontage buildings or on 
other sites within the built-up area of Quorn or where the site is closely surrounded 
by existing buildings; 

b) Retains existing important natural boundaries such as trees, hedges and streams; 
c) Does not reduce garden space to an extent where it adversely impacts on the 

character of the area, or the amenity of neighbours and the occupiers of the 
dwelling; 

d) It provides for a safe vehicular and pedestrian access to the site; and 
e) Does not result in an unacceptable loss of amenity for neighbouring occupiers by 

reason of loss of privacy, loss of daylight, visual intrusion or noise. 
 

The Charnwood Design SPD sets out what the Council considers to be high quality design 
in Charnwood and, in doing so, provides applicants greater clarity on how their proposals 
can meet the policy requirements in the adopted Charnwood Local Plan Core Strategy. 
The principles of Good Design are based around the six principles outlined below: 

1) Respecting and enhancing local character 
2) Providing attractive public and private spaces 
3) Well connected and legible streets and spaces 

Page 21



4) Creating multi-functional, safe and inclusive places 
5) Adapting to climate change 
6) Protecting the amenity of existing and future occupiers 

 
The proposed trio of new dwellings on this site to the west of Flanders Close would 
represent an eclectic mix of architectural styles. The proposed variation in design is 
considered to reflect the character of the wider area, notably Loughborough Road, where 
significant variation in scale, layout, materials can be found. It is considered that this 
variation to the design would provide an attractive and high-quality appearance that would 
complement the rest of Flanders Close. Flanders Close itself is composed of varying 
large, two and a half storey detached dwellings of a mock-Georgian style. Plot 3 follows 
the same mock-Georgian architectural style as many of the properties within Flanders 
Close. The diversity of built form throughout Loughborough Road is a strong feature of this 
part of Quorn, the incorporation of varying traditional designs throughout the development 
site help to ensure that the local vernacular architectural style is maintained. There is a 
mixture of facing red brickwork and render to the elevations, pitched roofs, plain tiles, slate 
roofs, gable projections, bay windows, chimneys and porches. The overall result in 
distinctive and visually rich.  
 
The layout of the proposed scheme is such that it would be dominated by open space. 
The western side of the site would be dominated by an area of wildflower grassland 
abutting scrubland with large mixed deciduous trees. A Beech tree would form the 
principal arboricultural feature of the site.  
 
The density of the proposed development would be akin to that of Flanders Close and 
Loughborough Road. Flanders Close is a dense housing development with a strong sense 
of enclosure brought about by the relatively tall dwellings. This sense of enclosure cannot 
be replicated here, however the space between buildings and arrangement of built form 
across the site is broadly consistent throughout Flanders Close that is considered to result 
in a well-proportioned layout. The layout also results in a good degree of natural 
surveillance, to limit the prevalence of anti-social behaviour or crime from proliferating. 
 
The proposed development would not be seen from the street scene of Loughborough 
Road, and only a limited view of the built form of the application site would be achieved 
from Flanders Close. The development would establish a new street scene at the rear of 
Flanders Close, although key traits of both Flanders Close and Loughborough Road would 
be carried across into the proposed development. As such, it is considered that the 
proposed development would be in accordance with Policies S2 and H5 of the Quorn 
Neighbourhood Plan. 
 
Final details of external materials, hard and soft landscaping and boundary treatment 
details can be secured by condition to ensure appropriate finishes to the development.    
 
It is therefore considered that the proposal would represent high quality design that 
reflects the character of the context and the street scene and would accord with Policies 
CS2 and EV/1 and policies S2 and H5 of the QNP and the adopted SPD on Design. 
 
Amenity impacts 
Policy CS2 of the Core Strategy requires new developments to protect the amenity of 
people who live or work nearby and those who will live in the new development.  Policy 

Page 22



EV/1 of the Local Plan states that the Council will seek to ensure a high standard of 
design in all new developments. Planning permission will be granted for new development 
which safeguards the amenities of adjoining properties, particularly the privacy and light 
enjoyed by adjoining residential areas. 
 
Policy H5, supports development that does not reduce garden space or the amenity of 
neighbours, of which is it considered that the development would achieve. Policy H5 
supports developments that do not result in a loss of amenity through loss of privacy, loss 
of daylight, visual intrusion or noise, of which the development would be in accordance 
with. 
 
The site access is bound by nos. 10 &11 Flanders Close, both large detached two and a 
half storey dwellings. No.11 Flanders Close has a ground floor window within the side 
elevation adjacent to the site entrance which serves a bathroom. No.10 Flanders Close 
has a window within the second floor facing towards the site entrance. The Local Highway 
Authority note that the access to the site would be roughly 5.0m wide and are satisfied 
that the access can suitably accommodate the applicant’s development proposal. Concern 
has been raised for the noise and pollution from cars using the proposed access in future. 
The access to the proposed dwellings is existing but the proposed three dwellings would 
intensify the use of the access.  The privacy of numbers 10 and 11 will not be harmed by 
the access and no main habitable room ground floor windows face the access and so 
noise or disturbance from car movements will be minimal.  Also, the proposed dwellings 
include charging points for electric vehicles and the site is also closely located to the 
village centre where parks, leisure facilities, and local amenities are a short walk or cycle 
ride away, thereby limiting the use of the private car. 
 
Plot 1 would be positioned behind no.11 Flanders Close, at a distance of approximately 
15.5m from the rear of number 11 to the 2 storey flank wall, which is in excess of the 
required separation distance of 9.5m as set out in the Design SPD. There is one side 
facing window within the first floor of plot 1, which would serve an en-suite bathroom. This 
window would be frosted and top opening above 1.7m, in order to ensure that the privacy 
of both the occupants of plot 1, and that of the adjacent neighbours at no.11 Flanders 
Close is maintained. This can be secured by condition.  
 
The garage at plot 1 would be positioned directly behind no.12 Flanders Close, at a 
distance of approximately 11.5m, which is also in excess of the required separation 
distance as set out in the Design SPD. As such, it is considered that there would not be 
any significant loss of outlook from these neighbouring properties.  
 
The windows within the rear elevation of plot 1 would allow for a small degree of additional 
overlooking to the residents of no. 12 Flanders Close. However, the two sites are 
separated by a proposed single car garage which would limit views into the private 
amenity space at the rear of no.12. As the plots are laid out perpendicular to one another, 
there is a reduced amount of overlooking.  Furthermore, a separation distance of roughly 
20m would separate the nearest upper floor windows.  
 
Furthermore, plot 1 of the development site is located to the north-west of these 
neighbouring dwellings. This means that there would be no additional loss of sunlight to 
these neighbouring properties than the existing layout. 
 

Page 23



The application site is located south-west of the properties on Loughborough Road and 
would be separated from these neighbouring properties by various trees and shrubs 
located within the proposed ‘badger area’. The proposed dwellings would be located 
between 50 to 90 metres away from the rear of the nearest properties on Loughborough 
Road. As such, it is considered that the proposed development would not cause any 
significant adverse impact to the amenity of these neighbouring occupants.  
 
In regard to the amenity of the future occupants of the development site, each of the 
properties would fulfil the nationally prescribed space standards, and each property would 
be provided with a large private garden area. The level of overlooking from no.12 Flanders 
Close upon plot 1 is not considered to be unacceptable due to the separation distance and 
siting of the garage, which would ensure that the area of garden closest to the dwelling 
would remain private. Direct views from window to window would be at an oblique angle 
Plots 2 and 3 would not be overlooked by each other or any neighbouring dwellings due to 
their design and layout. There is not considered to be any significant overshadowing 
across the development site, with each dwelling benefitting from an east facing garden, 
with a relatively open aspect across neighbouring gardens.  
 
In summary, it is considered that the proposal accords with Policies CS2 of the Core 
Strategy, EV/1 of the Local Plan and policy H5 of the QNP and meets the standards within 
the Design SPD in terms of amenity impact. 
 
Transport and Highway Impact 
 
Policy TR/18 of the Local Plan states that planning permission will not be granted for 
development unless off-street parking for vehicles, including cycles, and servicing 
arrangements are included to secure highway safety and minimise harm to visual and 
local amenities. The adopted standards included as Appendix 1 will be used as the 
starting point in assessing the level of provision and represent the maximum level. 
 
In the Central areas of Loughborough and Shepshed, District Centres, primarily 
employment areas and other areas of significant trip generation the quantity of parking 
within new development will be determined through negotiation based on containing car 
parking provision. The quantity of parking allowed will reflect the proposed use and the 
location of development, the availability of public off-street parking; the current, or 
potential accessibility by non-car modes; the feasibility for commuted payments; the scope 
for practical measures to significantly reduce the use of private car trips to and from a site; 
and the need to reduce existing levels of private non-residential (PNR) car parking. 
 
Policy TT1 of the QNP requires that development incorporate sufficient off-road parking, 
but does not include parking standards. Policy H5 supports developments which provide a 
safe vehicular and pedestrian access to the site.  
 
Paragraph 111 of the NPPF (2021) sets out that planning permission should only be 
refused on highway grounds if there would be an unacceptable highway safety impacts or 
severe; residual cumulative impacts to the highway network.   
 
The access will be approximately 5m wide and will be bound at both sides by dwellings 
number 10 and 11 of Flanders Close. In accordance to Figure DG20 of part 3 of the 
Leicestershire Highway Design Guide (LHDG) the access is required to be 5.25m 

Page 24



however the Local Highways Authority (LHA) note the proposed development would 
remain in private ownership therefore the LHA would not seek to refuse the application 
due to this shortfall in access width. The LHA are satisfied that the access to Flanders 
Close can suitably accommodate the development proposal. 
 
There have been two Personal Injury Collisions (PIC's) recorded within 500m of the site 
along Loughborough Road within the last five years. Both PIC's were recorded 'slight' in 
severity and occurred in February 2017 and October 2018. The development is not 
considered to be significantly detrimental to highway safety in this regard. 
 
The development includes seven off-road parking spaces and 4 garage spaces. The 
parking proposal is considered to be acceptable and in accordance to the parking 
standards detailed within the Leicestershire Highway Design Guide (LHDG). 
 
There are no concerns regarding access to the proposed development for emergency 
vehicles from the Local Highway Authority. 
 
The proposal therefore accords with Policy TR/18 and policies TT1 and H5 of the QNP 
and the Leicestershire Highways Design Guidance. 
 
Ecology and Biodiversity 
 
Policy CS13 seeks to conserve and enhance the natural environment with regard to 
biodiversity and ecological habitats. The policy supports development that protects 
biodiversity and geodiversity and those that enhance, restore or re-create biodiversity.  
The loss of features of biodiversity and geodiversity will only be supported in exceptional 
circumstances where the benefit of the development clearly outweighs the impact. Where 
there are impacts, the policy requires mitigation or compensation of equal or greater 
value, likely to result in a net gain in biodiversity.  
 
Policy H5 of the QNP supports windfall development within the settlement boundary 
where they retain important natural boundaries, such as trees, hedges and streams.   
 
Policy ENV4 of the Quorn Neighbourhood Plan seeks to ensure that new development 
should be designed to retain such trees and hedges wherever possible.  
 
Policy ENV6 of the Quorn Neighbourhood Plan states that development proposals should 
not damage or adversely affect sites designated for their nature conservation importance 
(SSSI, RIGS, LWS), or Priority Habitats, Species of Principal Importance (species of 
conservation concern) or their key habitats, or other statutorily protected species.  
 
The site is a greenfield site but it is not identified within the Quorn Neighbourhood Plan or 
Charnwood Local Plan as an area of designated Local Green Space. Furthermore, the 
application site is not identified as an Important Open Space in the Quorn Neighbourhood 
Plan. The application site is not identified as a Site Important to Nature Conservation, or a 
Site of local biodiversity importance, as designated by Charnwood Borough Council and 
Natural England. The application site is also not a designated site of historic 
environmental significance. 
 

Page 25



The application is supported by an Ecological Appraisal, Biodiversity Impact Assessment 
and an Arboricultural Impact Assessment. The ecological survey summarises that the 
proposals sought to minimise impacts and a number of appropriate avoidance, mitigation, 
compensation and enhancement measures are proposed. A separate exercise had been 
carried out to determine whether the development can deliver net gains for biodiversity. 
The results are set out in a separate Technical Note which finds that the development can 
deliver a net gain for habitats, whilst a number of tangible and nontangible gains can also 
be delivered. The Biodiversity Impact Assessment summarises in considering that the 
quantitative assessment using the DEFRA metric has demonstrated the site will deliver a 
biodiversity net gain in relation to habitats. A qualitative assessment has been carried out 
which finds that a number of tangible and non-tangible qualitative gains can also be 
realised at the site such as the delivery of faunal enhancements targeted to national and 
local Priority Species.  
 
The Arboricultural Impact Assessment states that to minimise necessary tree removals, 
the footprint of the proposed built form is set centrally within the site; the unavoidable 
removals are all of low quality, and consist of three self-set Sycamore, establishing scrub 
and understorey only.  The development would retain the key trees found on and adjacent 
the site, those of category A or B status.  The site is adjacent to 2 TPO trees to the west; a 
beech and sycamore (T22 and T23).  It is considered that the proposed scheme would 
have no impact upon the health of the adjacent TPO protected trees.  On site, the Silver 
Birch (T20) to the north-west of the site, and two Category ‘B’ Oak trees (T11 and T15) 
located within the proposed badger protection area will all be retained.  The only trees to 
be removed would be three poor examples of self-set sycamores category ‘C’ (T10, T13 
and T14).  Conditions are suggested to protect the retained trees during construction and 
retain them thereafter for their amenity and biodiversity value.  
 
The proposed development will be accompanied by a scheme of landscaping, and 
provide the opportunity to secure betterment to the tree stock. The proposed replacement 
plantings can both reinforce and complement the retained tree stock, whilst also providing 
betterment in terms of amenity and seasonal interest.  Subject to ongoing arboricultural 
input during detailed design of the proposals, including levels, drainage and services, and 
the implementation of safeguards for protecting retained trees during construction, the 
development can be introduced whilst ensuring the confident protection of retained trees. 
The proposed development allows for the confident retention of all the site’s moderate and 
high quality trees and does not impact on any trees afforded protection within a TPO. The 
scheme allows for the introduction of a scheme of landscaping to reinforce retained tree 
cover. 
 
The site contains a badger sett and badgers are protected species.  The protected 
species that are located within the north of the application site, would be protected during 
construction through the use of a suitably worded condition requiring a badger mitigation 
strategy. The badger areas and corridors within the proposed site layout are considered to 
be adequate to maintain the provision of habitat for the protected species. 
 
The Senior Ecology Officer did not accept the results of the original Biodiversity Impact 
Assessment submitted with the application.  The Officer has worked with the applicant to 
agree a position on the current biodiversity value of the site and the impact of the 
development.  It is considered that a loss of -1.23 habitat biodiversity value would result 
from the proposals.  To mitigate this impact a sum of £66,345 towards off-site habitat 

Page 26



enhancement has been agreed with the applicant and is considered to be adequate to 
offset this loss of biodiversity.  This can be secured through a Unilateral Undertaking 
pursuant to S106 in order to deliver habitat enhancement in the Quorn/Mountsorrel area. 
This compensation to secure replacement provision of biodiversity is considered to be in 
accordance with Policy CS13 of the Core Strategy and is CIL compliant. 
 
Conditions are suggested to secure a Construction Environmental Management Plan, 
badger mitigation strategy and Natural England licence details, landscaping details and 
on-site mitigation measures recommended in the submitted Ecological Assessment.   
 
Subject to the conditions suggested and subject to appropriate off-site mitigation being 
secured by a Unilateral Undertaking it is considered that the proposal would accord with 
Policy CS16 of the Core Strategy and H5, ENV4 and ENV6 of the QNP and paragraph 
174 of the NPPF.  
 
Other matters  
 
Policy E6 of QNP states that all new developments should have access to superfast 
broadband, this can be secured by a suitably worded planning condition.  
 
Policy CS16 of the Core Strategy requires development to provide for suitable storage of 
waste and allow convenient waste collection. The application is supported by a bin 
storage and collection plan. The bins would be stored at the rear and side of each 
property. The bins would be collected from a central point, adjacent to the roadway and 
close to the site access within 25m of the rear of the refuse collection vehicle. 
Consequently, the development accords with Policy CS16. 
 
Conclusion and the Planning Balance 
 
The adopted Core Strategy and saved Policies of the Local Plan and the Quorn 
Neighbourhood Plan are the starting point for the consideration of these proposals.  The 
proposal for 3 dwellings is within the limits to development of Quorn and the mix of 
dwellings proposed is appropriate, therefore the principle of the development is 
acceptable.  The housing policies of the Development Plan are out of date, but 
compliance with them is given moderate weight as they direct development to within 
Quorn as a sustainable settlement.  The layout and design of the scheme reflects the 
context of the site and the amenity impacts on neighbouring properties are acceptable.  
The parking provision is sufficient and the highways impact is acceptable.   
 
The development will result in a net loss of biodiversity on site and to mitigate this and 
ensure no net loss an off-site commuted sum for local biodiversity enhancement is to be 
secured.  The proposed development is considered to accord with all relevant policies of 
the Development Plan, including the Quorn Neighbourhood Plan and the Design SPD and 
Leicestershire Highways Design Guidance are material considerations in favour of the 
development.  
 
The housing policies most important for determining the application are out of date and 
the Council cannot currently demonstrate a 5 year supply of housing and as such, the 
presumption in favour of sustainable development of NPPF paragraph 11(d)(ii) is applied.  
 

Page 27



Applying the tilted balance, the provision of 3 dwellings in an accessible location would 
make a useful contribution to housing supply within the Borough and would support the 
Government’s objective of significantly boosting the supply of homes.  At a time where 
there is a Borough wide housing shortfall and the Council can demonstrate only 3.34 
years supply, the benefits of such housing provision are afforded significant positive 
weight. 
 
The proposal would provide some economic benefit in terms of construction, local spend, 
council tax and home bonus but the scale is limited by the small size of the proposal and 
such economic benefits are standard for all development proposals and are afforded only 
limited weight. 
 
It has been demonstrated that the development is acceptable in respect of highway safety 
and capacity.  This is afforded neutral weight as all proposals are required to be safe and 
not have any severe impact on highway safety. 
 
Development proposals are required to provide biodiversity benefits and therefore only 
moderate weight can be given to this as it is required to mitigate the effects of the 
development. 
 
Overall, the adverse effect on biodiversity can be mitigated no other adverse impacts have 
been identified.  Therefore, the adverse impacts of the development would not significantly 
and demonstrably outweigh the benefits of the development, when assessed against the 
NPPF as a whole.  The proposal would therefore amount to sustainable development as 
sought by the NPPF.  
 
RECOMMENDATION A:- 
 
That authority is given to the Head of Planning and Regeneration and the Head of 
Strategic Support to enter into an agreement under Section 106 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 to secure contributions, as set out below:  
 

 Contribution 

Biodiversity enhancement within the 
Quorn/Mountsorrel area 

£66,345 

 
 
RECCOMMENDATION B:- 
 
That subject to the completion of the agreement in A above, planning permission be 
granted subject to the following conditions and notes: 
 
RECOMMENDATION:- 
 
Grant Conditionally 
  
 

1. The development, hereby permitted, shall be begun not later than 3 years from the 
date of this permission. 
 

Page 28



REASON: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act, 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 

 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 

following approved plans: 
 
Application form – received 07 January 2022 
Site Location Plan – received 12 August 2020 
Site Plan – Drg. No. 3489 – 02 Rev. B – received 21 January 2022 
Plot 1 Plans and Elevations – Drg. No. 3489-03 Rev. B – received 21 January 2022 
Plot 1 Garage Plans and Elevations – Drg. No. 3489- 07 – received 21 January 
2022 
Plot 2 Plans and Elevations – Drg. No. 3489 -04 – received 12 August 2020 
Plot 3 Plans and Elevations – Drg. No. 3489-05 - received 12 August 2020 
Tree Constraints Plan - Drg. No. 10478 TCP 01 – received 18 September 2020 
Tree Protection Plan Drg. No. 10478 TPP 01 – received 18 September 2020 
Fire Tender Tracking – Drg. No. 23387_08_010_02 – received 12 August 2020 
Bin Store & Collection Plan – Drg. No. 3489-08 – received 12 August 2020 

 
REASON:  To define the terms of the planning permission. 

 
3. No development shall commence on the site until such time as a construction traffic 

management plan, including as a minimum details of the routing of construction 
traffic, wheel cleansing facilities, vehicle parking facilities, and a timetable for their 
provision, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  The construction of the development shall thereafter be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details and timetable. 

 
REASON: To reduce the possibility of deleterious material (mud, stones etc.) being 
deposited in the highway and becoming a hazard for road users, to ensure that 
construction traffic does not use unsatisfactory roads and lead to on-street parking 
problems in the area in accordance with Policy TR18 of the Local Plan. 

 
4. No materials shall be placed on the site until such time as details of the type, 

texture and colour of the materials to be used on the external surfaces of the 
proposed development have been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Only materials agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
shall be used in carrying out the development. 
 
REASON: To make sure that the appearance of the completed development is 
satisfactory in accordance with Policy CS2 of the Core Strategy. 
 

5. No development, including site works, shall begin until each tree shown to be 
retained on plan 10478 TPP01 Tree Protection Plan (Appendix C of the 
Arboricultural Impact Assessment, Aspect Arboriculture, Sept 2020) has been 
protected, in a manner which shall have first been submitted to and agreed in 
writing by the local planning authority. Each tree shall be protected in the agreed 
manner for the duration of building operations on the application site. The tree 
protection within the curtilage of plot 3 shall only be removed once the dwelling is 

Page 29



erected, to allow for the erection of the curtilage boundaries. If any trenches for 
services are required in the protected areas, they shall be excavated and back-
filled by hand and any tree roots encountered with a diameter of 5cm or more shall 
be left unsevered. 
 
REASON: The ensure the continued health of the retained trees and to ensure they 
are no adversely affected by the construction works trees, in the interests of visual 
amenity and biodiversity value of the area in accordance with policies CS2, CS11 
and CS13 of the Core Strategy. 
 

6. The trees shown to be retained on plan 10478 TPP01 Tree Protection Plan 
(Appendix C of the Arboricultural Impact Assessment, Aspect Arboriculture, Sept 
2020) shall be retained and not be felled or harmed without the written consent of 
the Local Planning Authority.   
 
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and biodiversity value of the area in 
accordance with policies CS2, CS11 and CS13 of the Core Strategy.  
 

7. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied until such time as 
the access arrangements shown on Proposed Highway Alterations, drawing 
number Site Plan – Drg. No. 3489 – 02 Rev. B – received 21 January 2022 have 
been implemented in full. 

 
REASON: To ensure that vehicles entering and leaving the site may pass each 
other clear of the highway, in a slow and controlled manner, in the interests of 
general highway safety and in accordance with the National Planning Policy 
Framework (2021). 

 
8. The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until such time as the 

parking and turning facilities have been implemented in accordance with Proposed 
Site Layout drawing number Site Plan – Drg. No. 3489 – 02 Rev. B – received 21 
January 2022. Thereafter the onsite parking provision shall be so maintained in 
perpetuity. 

 
REASON: To ensure that adequate off-street parking provision is made to reduce 
the possibility of the proposed development leading to on-street parking problems 
locally (and to enable vehicles to enter and leave the site in a forward direction) in 
the interests of highway safety and in accordance with the National Planning Policy 
Framework (2021). 

 
9. Notwithstanding the submitted details, prior to the construction of the dwellings 

above slab level, a scheme for the treatment of the application site boundaries and 
the boundary treatment for each dwelling shall be submitted in writing to the local 
planning authority for approval. 
 
REASON: To ensure the satisfactory, overall appearance of the completed 
development in accordance with policy CS2 of the Core Strategy and policy EV/1 of 
the Charnwood Local Plan.  
 

Page 30



10. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, including any 
demolition and any works of site clearance, a mitigation strategy for badgers, which 
shall include details of a recent survey (no older than six months), whether a 
development licence is required and the location and timing of the provision of any 
protective fencing around setts/commuting routes, shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, the development 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.   
 
REASON: To ensure that the development does not cause harm to any protected 
species or their habitats and in the interests of retaining the landscape and 
ecological value of the site in accordance with Policy CS13 of the Core Strategy 
and the NPPF.  

 

11. Prior to the commencement of development, a landscaping scheme for the site, to 
include those details specified below, shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the local planning authority: 
i) the treatment proposed for all ground surfaces, including hard areas; 
ii) full details of tree planting; 
iii) planting schedules, noting the species, sizes, numbers and densities of plants; 
iv) finished levels or contours; 
v) any fences to be erected or constructed; 
vi) badger areas 
vii) buffer zones 
The landscaping scheme shall be in accordance with the details approved under 
condition 10 and shall be implemented in full following the first planting season of 
the approval.  
 
REASON: To ensure that a satisfactory landscape scheme is provided in the 
interest of well planned development, visual amenity and biodiversity enhancement 
in accordance with policies CS2 and CS13 of the Core Strategy.  
 

12. No development shall take place (including demolition, ground works, vegetation 
clearance) until a Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP: 
Biodiversity) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The CEMP: Biodiversity shall include measures to prevent harm to 
protected species and accord with the recommendations in section 6 of the 
Ecological Appraisal (Aspect Ecology, August 2020). The approved CEMP: 
Biodiversity shall be adhered to and implemented throughout the construction 
period strictly in accordance with the approved details, unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 

REASON: To ensure that the development does not cause harm to any protected 
species or their habitats and in the interests of retaining the landscape and 
ecological value of the site in accordance with Policy CS13 of the Core Strategy 
and then NPPF. 

 

13. Prior to commencement of development, full details of a scheme for the location of 
bat roosting and bird nesting features to be integrated into buildings and suitable 
hedgehog gaps in boundary features shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter and prior to the occupation of any 

Page 31



dwelling hereby permitted features shall be installed on the site in accordance with 
the approved details. 
 
REASON: To protect habitats of importance to biodiversity conservation from any 
loss or damage in accordance with Policy CS13 of the Core Strategy and the 
NPPF.  
 

14. Notwithstanding the provisions of The Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015, (or any order revoking and re-
enacting that Order) the window within the south west elevation of Plot 1 at first 
floor window level shall be fitted with obscure glass, and shall be maintained in 
perpetuity. 
 
REASON: To prevent undue overlooking of nearby dwellings, in the interests of the 
privacy of nearby residents in accordance with Policy CS2 of the Core Strategy. 
 

15. Prior to the first occupation of the hereby approved dwellings, each shall be fitted 
with a domestic home charging unit for electric vehicles (EVs). 
 
REASON: In the interests of delivering low carbon development, in line with 
Paragraph 152 of the NPPF. 
 

16. Prior to the first occupation of the hereby approved dwellings, each dwelling shall 
be fitted with the appropriate infrastructure to provide superfast broadband (of at 
least 30Mbps). The broadband shall be available for use upon the first occupation 
of the hereby approved dwellings. 
 
REASON: In order to improve access to a superfast broadband service in 
accordance with Policy E6 of the Quorn Neighbourhood Plan. 

 

 
The following advice notes will be attached to a decision. 
 

1. The decision has been reached taking into account paragraph 38 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework and in accordance with The Town and Country 
Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015. 
 

2. The County Director of Highways, Transportation and Waste Management states 
that all roads, footpaths and verges together with all drainage works must be 
constructed in accordance with the Leicestershire County Council current 
document "Highway Requirements for Development" for adoption purposes. Details 
of longitudinal and cross sections of roadways and of surface water drainage must 
be submitted to and approved by the highway authority before development 
commences. This is to ensure that the roads to be constructed are to adoptable 
standards and appropriate for a Section 38 Agreement between the developer and 
the highway authority. 
 

3. This permission does not give any legal right for any work affecting neighbouring 
property, including buildings, walls, fences and vegetation within that property. The 

Page 32



responsibility for meeting any claims for damage to such features lies with the 
applicant. 

 
  
 
 
 

Page 33



Delegated planning decisions made by Charnwood Borough Council since the last Plans Committee report

Application 
number

Application 
type

Location Proposal Decision Decision date Ward

P/21/1276/2 62 Link Road
Anstey
Leicestershire
LE7 7BW

Retention of outbuilding to side and 
rear of house, 1.8m high fence 
adjacent to highway.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

17-Feb-2022 Anstey

P/21/2438/2 6 Albion Street
Anstey
Leicestershire
LE7 7DD

Erection of 2 storey and single 
storey extensions to rear of dwelling, 
loft conversion and single storey 
front extension to accommodate bay 
window and entrance porch.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

28-Feb-2022 Anstey

P/21/2549/2 Poppy House
9 Darby Close
Barrow Upon Soar
LE12 8ZU

Proposed entrance canopy to front 
of dwelling.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

21-Feb-2022 Barrow & Sileby 
West

P/20/1905/2 128 Cotes Road
Barrow Upon Soar
LE12 8JS

Residential development of 4 
detached bungalows with associated 
garages, including formation of 
access, hard and soft landscaping 
and related works.

Full GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

11-Mar-2022 Barrow & Sileby 
West

P/21/1415/2 Foxhill Farm
343 Walton Lane
Walton On The Wolds
LE12 8JX

Erection of agricultural building for 
storage of vehicles, machinery and 
workshop

Full REF, Permission be refused for the 
following reasons:

21-Feb-2022 Barrow & Sileby 
West
The Wolds

P/21/1892/2 Foxhill Farm
343 Walton Lane
Walton On The Wolds
LE12 8JX

Change of Use of Agricultural 
Buildings to Dwellinghouses (Class 
C3).

Change of 
Use Prior 
Notification

PRINOT, Prior approval from the 
Council is not required

28-Feb-2022 Barrow & Sileby 
West
The Wolds

P/21/1891/2 Foxhill Farm
343 Walton Lane
Walton On The Wolds
LE12 8JX

Change of Use of Agricultural 
Buildings to Dwellinghouses (Class 
C3)

Change of 
Use Prior 
Notification

PRINOT, Prior approval from the 
Council is not required

28-Feb-2022 Barrow & Sileby 
West
The Wolds

Page 1 of 13

P
age 34

A
genda Item

 6



Application 
number

Application 
type

Location Proposal Decision Decision date Ward

P/21/1322/2 27 Cliffe Road
Birstall
LE4 3AE

Erection of single storey outbuilding 
at rear of house.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

24-Feb-2022 Birstall Wanlip

P/21/2528/2 24 Cliffwood Avenue
Birstall
Leicestershire
LE4 3DD

Convert and raise roof height of 
garage to form habitable room.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

03-Mar-2022 Birstall Wanlip

P/22/0032/2 16 Hollytree Avenue
Birstall
Leicestershire
LE4 4LF

Certificate of lawful (proposed) 
development for loft conversion 
which includes a hip to gable 
extension, rear flat roof dormer and 
two roof lights in front roof slope.

CL (Proposed) CLDPGRANT, Certificate of Lawful 
Proposed Development

15-Feb-2022 Birstall 
Watermead

P/22/0071/2 16 Hollytree Avenue
Birstall
Leicestershire
LE4 4LF

The erection of a single storey rear 
extension extending beyond the rear 
wall of the original house by 6m, with 
a maximum height of 3.9m, and 
height to the eaves of 2.9m.

Householder 
Prior 
Notification

PRIGRA, The prior approval of the 
Council is granted

18-Feb-2022 Birstall 
Watermead

P/21/2161/2 103 Main Street
Newtown Linford
LE6 0AF

Refurbishment and alterations to 
join 103 and 105 into a single family 
residence, proposed canopy 
replacing existing conservatory and 
alterations to existing garage 
building.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

25-Feb-2022 Forest Bradgate

P/21/1716/2 Sandhills Lodge Farm
Markfield Lane
Newtown Linford
Leicestershire
LE67 9PS

Variation of plans approved under 
application reference P/14/1072/2 
and as amended by application 
reference P/14/2296/2.

Full GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

07-Mar-2022 Forest Bradgate

P/20/1053/2 187 Ulverscroft Lane
Newtown Linford
LE67 9PL

Demolition of host dwelling and the 
erection of a replacement dwelling, 
and associated works.

Full GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

08-Mar-2022 Forest Bradgate

Page 2 of 13

P
age 35



Application 
number

Application 
type

Location Proposal Decision Decision date Ward

P/22/0194/2 44 Garendon Road
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 4QD

Certificate of lawful (proposed) 
development for single storey rear 
extension.

CL (Proposed) CLDPGRANT, Certificate of Lawful 
Proposed Development

02-Mar-2022 Loughborough 
Ashby

P/21/2387/2 18 Foxcote Drive
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 4WF

Proposed single storey extension to 
front of dwelling to provide bay 
window; part 2-storey and part single 
storey extension to rear to link 
detached garage to existing 
dwelling.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

17-Feb-2022 Loughborough 
Garendon

P/22/0078/2 2 Wilstone Close
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 4SZ

Extend residential curtilage to front, 
side and rear by erecting a 1.8m 
high boundary fence to dwelling.

Householder REF, Permission be refused for the 
following reasons:

09-Mar-2022 Loughborough 
Garendon

P/21/2498/2 Shepshed Road
Hathern
Leicestershire
LE12 5LL

Erection of 17.0m phase 8 
monopole with wraparound cabinet 
at base, 3x associated cabinets

Telecom 
Determination 
with mast

NRQ, The submission of details are 
not required for consideration.

15-Feb-2022 Loughborough 
Hathern & 
Dishley

P/21/2470/2 121 Braddon Road
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 5YU

Erection of first floor extension to 
front and side of house

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

17-Feb-2022 Loughborough 
Hathern & 
Dishley

P/21/2044/2 60 Darwin Crescent
Loughborough
LE11 5SB

Proposed single storey extension to 
rear of dwelling.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

28-Feb-2022 Loughborough 
Hathern & 
Dishley

P/21/2526/2 25 Gladstone Street
Hathern
Leicestershire
LE12 5LE

Proposed 1.8m high fence with 2 x 
0.90m wide timber gates to side and 
front of dwelling.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

09-Mar-2022 Loughborough 
Hathern & 
Dishley

Page 3 of 13

P
age 36



Application 
number

Application 
type

Location Proposal Decision Decision date Ward

P/21/2070/2 Hathern Nursery
Whatton Road
Hathern
LE12 5LX

Proposed detached material store.Full GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

10-Mar-2022 Loughborough 
Hathern & 
Dishley

P/21/0171/2 144 Nottingham Road
Loughborough
LE11 1EX

Construction of new four/five storey 
apartment building comprising of 16 
No. one and two bedroom flats, with 
associated hard landscape 
courtyard amenity space, planting, 
cycle and bin storage following 
demolition of existing buildings

Full GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

23-Feb-2022 Loughborough 
Lemyngton

P/21/2578/2 Thermo Fisher Scientific
Bishop Meadow Road
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 5RG

One temporary storage buildingFull GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

04-Mar-2022 Loughborough 
Lemyngton

P/21/2162/2 2 Cotes Drive
Loughborough
LE11 1JD

Single storey side and rear 
extension.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

10-Mar-2022 Loughborough 
Lemyngton

P/22/0116/2 8 Berkeley Road
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 3SJ

Certificate of Lawful (proposed) 
development for removal of door, 
insertion of new window to side 
elevation and replacement front 
door.

CL (Proposed) CLDPGRANT, Certificate of Lawful 
Proposed Development

16-Feb-2022 Loughborough 
Nanpantan

P/21/2121/2 11 Spinney Hill Drive
Loughborough
LE11 3LB

Erection of 2 storey side extension 
to dwelling, 2 storey and single 
storey rear extensions, single storey 
front extension and bay window to 
front.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

22-Feb-2022 Loughborough 
Nanpantan

P/20/2274/2 6 Longcliffe Gardens
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 3YQ

Certificate of lawful (proposed) 
development for single storey side 
extension.

CL (Proposed) REF, Permission be refused for the 
following reasons:

04-Mar-2022 Loughborough 
Nanpantan

Page 4 of 13

P
age 37



Application 
number

Application 
type

Location Proposal Decision Decision date Ward

P/22/0005/2 46 Holywell Drive
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 3JY

Single storey extensions to front and 
side and two storey extensions to 
side and rear of detached house

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

09-Mar-2022 Loughborough 
Nanpantan

P/21/2493/2 40 Highfields Drive
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 3JT

Erection of detached outbuilding to 
rear of dwelling

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

11-Mar-2022 Loughborough 
Nanpantan

P/22/0012/2 64 Outwoods Drive
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 3LU

Certificate of lawful (proposed) 
development for loft conversion to 
include hip to gable extension, rear 
flat roofed dormer with juliette 
balcony and two front roof lights.

CL (Proposed) CLDPGRANT, Certificate of Lawful 
Proposed Development

15-Feb-2022 Loughborough 
Outwoods

P/21/2620/2 22 Parklands Drive 
Loughborough 
Leicestershire 
LE11 2TB

The erection of a single storey rear 
extension extending beyond the rear 
wall of the original house by 6m, with 
a maximum height of 3.6m, and 
height to the eaves of 3m.

Householder 
Prior 
Notification

PRINOT, Prior approval from the 
Council is not required

22-Feb-2022 Loughborough 
Shelthorpe

P/21/2511/2 70 Allendale Road
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 2HY

Retention of ground floor extension 
and erection of first floor extension 
to rear of house

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

03-Mar-2022 Loughborough 
Shelthorpe

P/21/1742/2 62 Allendale Road
Loughborough
LE11 2HY

Proposed part 2-storey, part 
single-storey extension to rear and 
insertion of dormer windows to front 
elevation to provide accommodation 
in roof.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

03-Mar-2022 Loughborough 
Shelthorpe

P/21/2674/2 33 Haddon Way
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 2UE

Erection of single storey extension 
to rear of house

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

08-Mar-2022 Loughborough 
Shelthorpe

Page 5 of 13

P
age 38



Application 
number

Application 
type

Location Proposal Decision Decision date Ward

P/21/2115/2 3 Oak Close
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 2SQ

Retention of outbuilding to rear of 
residential dwelling (C3) for use as a 
Nail and beauty salon (Sui Generis).

Full GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

09-Mar-2022 Loughborough 
Shelthorpe

P/21/1429/2 2 - 4 Ashby Road
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 3AE

Change of use from retail shop (Use 
Class E(a)) to hot food take-away 
(Use Class Sui Generis) and 
installation of extraction flue to rear

Full GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

22-Feb-2022 Loughborough 
Southfields

P/21/2376/2 12 Burton Street
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 2DT

Proposed istallation of 5kW air 
source heat pump to rear of 
dwelling.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

03-Mar-2022 Loughborough 
Southfields

P/21/2542/2 37 Cowdray Close
Loughborough
LE11 2BW

Single storey rear extension, roof 
extensions, porch, render and 
cladding

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

04-Mar-2022 Loughborough 
Southfields

P/21/2597/2 43 Mayfield Drive
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 2EA

Installation of gazebo to the rear of 
garden.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

09-Mar-2022 Loughborough 
Southfields

P/21/2437/2 Land to the rear of 26 - 28 
William Street
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 3BZ

Erection of a detached 2.5 storey 
dwelling and associated works.

Full GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

09-Mar-2022 Loughborough 
Southfields

P/21/1899/2 104 Alan Moss Road
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 5LY

Certificate of Lawfulness (Existing) 
for use of property as a house of 
multiple occupation (Use Class C4 
HMO).

CL (existing) GTD, Permission be granted 
unconditionally

24-Feb-2022 Loughborough 
Storer

P/21/2482/2 37 Oxford Street
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 5DP

Two storey and single storey 
extensions to rear of terraced house 
and conversion of resultant building 
to 2. No. 2 bedroom flats.

Full GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

28-Feb-2022 Loughborough 
Storer

Page 6 of 13

P
age 39



Application 
number

Application 
type

Location Proposal Decision Decision date Ward

P/21/2253/2 82 Alan Moss Road
Loughborough
LE11 5LY

Certificate of Lawfulness (Existing) 
for use of property as a house of 
multiple occupation (Use Class C4 
HMO).

CL (existing) GTD, Permission be granted 
unconditionally

11-Mar-2022 Loughborough 
Storer

P/21/2251/2 80 Alan Moss Road
Loughborough
LE11 5LY

Certificate of Lawfulness (Existing) 
for use of property as a house of 
multiple occupation (Use Class C4 
HMO).

CL (existing) GTD, Permission be granted 
unconditionally

11-Mar-2022 Loughborough 
Storer

P/21/1746/2 85 Cross Lane
Mountsorrel
LE12 7BX

Proposed part 2-storey and part 
single storey extension to side of 
existing dwelling and replacement of 
flat roof above existing 2-storey 
projection with pitched roof (Revised 
description 28th January 2022).

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

15-Feb-2022 Mountsorrel

P/22/0058/2 19 Cross Lane
Mountsorrel
Leicestershire
LE12 7BU

Certificate of lawful (proposed) 
development for rear 
extension/infilling under existing roof 
structure.

CL (Proposed) CLDPGRANT, Certificate of Lawful 
Proposed Development

21-Feb-2022 Mountsorrel

P/21/2210/2 62 Balmoral Road
Mountsorrel
LE12 7EN

Single storey side and rear 
extension to dwelling and bay 
window to front and extension to 
raised patio area.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

28-Feb-2022 Mountsorrel

P/21/1134/2 Croxton Road Stables
South Croxton Road
Queniborough
Leicestershire
LE7 3RU

Extensions and alterations to stable 
block for use as a canine day care 
facility and dog grooming and 
change of use of land to provide dog 
walking/training field (Part 
Retrospective).

Full REF, Permission be refused for the 
following reasons:

15-Feb-2022 Queniborough

P/21/0387/2 Hillcrest Farm
South Croxton Road
Queniborough
Leicestershire
LE7 3RX

Change of use of land and part of 
barn from agricultural to equestrian 
and formation of manege.

Full GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

21-Feb-2022 Queniborough

Page 7 of 13

P
age 40



Application 
number

Application 
type

Location Proposal Decision Decision date Ward

P/21/2436/2 Scout Hall
28A Queniborough Road
Queniborough
Leicestershire

Installation of 2 x air source heat 
pump units to rear of newly built 
scout/community hall

Full GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

01-Mar-2022 Queniborough

P/21/2375/2 1529 Melton Road
Queniborough
Leicestershire
LE7 3FP

Proposed first floor extension to 
rear, and replace flat roof with a 
hipped roof to dwelling.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

07-Mar-2022 Queniborough

P/21/1438/2 Quorn Court
26 High Street
Quorn
LE12 8DT

Retention of timber fence on NW 
side boundary measuring 1 metre 
high for the forward most 2 metres 
and 1.8 metres high for the 
remaining 7.5 metres length 
(Retrospective).

Full REF, Permission be refused for the 
following reasons:

23-Feb-2022 Quorn & 
Mountsorrel 
Castle

P/21/2327/2 Land at 57 Chaveney Road
Quorn
Leicestershire
LE12 8AB

Proposed erection of detached 
2-storey dwelling and store to rear of 
existing dwelling including widening 
of access.

Full GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

25-Feb-2022 Quorn & 
Mountsorrel 
Castle

P/21/2355/2 Land off Loughborough 
Road
Quorn
Leicestershire
LE12 8ED

Proposed 3x sales hoardings and 2x 
sales flags.

Advert 
Consent

GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

07-Mar-2022 Quorn & 
Mountsorrel 
Castle

P/22/0059/2 5 Beacon Avenue
Quorn
Leicestershire
LE12 8EW

The erection of a single storey rear 
extension extending beyond the rear 
wall of the original house by  4m, 
with a maximum height of 3.67m, 
and height to the eaves of 2.6m.

Householder 
Prior 
Notification

PRINOT, Prior approval from the 
Council is not required

08-Mar-2022 Quorn & 
Mountsorrel 
Castle

P/21/1916/2 21 Saxon Drive
Rothley
LE7 7SR

Proposed single storey extension 
with roof lantern above to rear of 
existing dwelling.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

15-Feb-2022 Rothley & 
Thurcaston

Page 8 of 13

P
age 41



Application 
number

Application 
type

Location Proposal Decision Decision date Ward

P/21/2416/2 29 Sheppard Way
Rothley
Leicestershire
LE7 7WG

Convert garage into habitable room.Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

17-Feb-2022 Rothley & 
Thurcaston

P/21/2524/2 1 Mountsorrel Lane
Rothley
Leicestershire
LE7 7PS

Installation of 3 new windows and 1 
door

Full GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

23-Feb-2022 Rothley & 
Thurcaston

P/21/2523/2 114 Station Road
Cropston
Leicestershire
LE7 7HE

Proposed single storey rear 
extensions and render finish to rear 
elevation and partial side elevation 
of dwelling.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

24-Feb-2022 Rothley & 
Thurcaston

P/21/2509/2 Plot 1 
Rothley Lodge
Loughborough Road
Rothley
Leicestershire
LE7 7NL

Erection of two industrial units (Use 
Class B2/B8) including associated 
parking, services and landscaping.

Full GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

25-Feb-2022 Rothley & 
Thurcaston

P/21/2617/2 Mountsorrel and Rothley 
Community Heritage Centre 
240 Swithland Lane
Rothley
Leicestershire
LE7 7UE

Erection of single storey extension 
to side of engine shed building.

Full GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

01-Mar-2022 Rothley & 
Thurcaston

P/21/2420/2 123 Swithland Lane
Rothley
Leicestershire
LE7 7SH

Proposed replacement conservatory 
to rear of dwelling.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

01-Mar-2022 Rothley & 
Thurcaston

P/21/1096/2 120 Main Street
Swithland
LE12 8TH

Erection of two storey extension to 
rear of dwelling following demolition 
of existing and lowering of ground 
floor level.

Full REF, Permission be refused for the 
following reasons:

04-Mar-2022 Rothley & 
Thurcaston

Page 9 of 13

P
age 42



Application 
number

Application 
type

Location Proposal Decision Decision date Ward

P/21/2270/2 5 Swithland Lane
Rothley
LE7 7SG

Erection of timber-framed garden 
office in rear garden (Retrospective).

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

10-Mar-2022 Rothley & 
Thurcaston

P/22/0036/2 The Cottage
27 The Ridgeway
Rothley
Leicestershire
LE7 7LE

Erection of two-storey front and 
side/rear extensions, erection of 
single-storey rear extension and 
associated internal and external 
alterations (including replacement 
roof and facing materials) to host 
dwellinghouse; and erection of front 
boundary wall/gates and associated 
landscaping - Variation of Condition 
2 (plans) of P/20/1687/2

Householder REF, Permission be refused for the 
following reasons:

11-Mar-2022 Rothley & 
Thurcaston

P/21/1124/2 adjacent to Crowson Close
Shepshed
Leicestershire

Installation of permanent cricket ball 
stop net fence.

Full GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

18-Feb-2022 Shepshed East

P/21/2112/2 Prospect House Unit 4
Old Station Close
Shepshed
LE12 9NJ

Flexible change of use to allow 
B2/B8 and/or retail members club 
(Sui Generis use class) in building 
fronting Old Station Close.

Full GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

25-Feb-2022 Shepshed East

P/22/0171/2 24 Brookside Close
Shepshed
Leicestershire
LE12 9HL

Certificate of lawful (proposed) 
development for a single storey rear 
extension.

CL (Proposed) CLDPGRANT, Certificate of Lawful 
Proposed Development

08-Mar-2022 Shepshed East

P/21/0707/2 Lindum Mill
Ashby Road East
Shepshed
LE12 9BS

Erection of a storage building to rear 
of site for bagged feed .

Full GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

10-Mar-2022 Shepshed East

P/21/2629/2 1 Blacksmiths Avenue
Shepshed
Leicestershire
LE12 9SF

Erection of two storey extension to 
side of dwelling, application of 
render and creation of new vehicular 
access with dropped kerb.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

10-Mar-2022 Shepshed East

Page 10 of 13

P
age 43



Application 
number

Application 
type

Location Proposal Decision Decision date Ward

P/21/2191/2 Shepshed Town Cricket 
Club
Morley Lane
Shepshed
LE12 9EU

Extension to changing roomsFull GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

11-Mar-2022 Shepshed East

P/22/0007/2 7 Sherrard Drive
Sileby
Leicestershire
LE12 7SG

Single storey rear and side 
extension

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

02-Mar-2022 Sileby

P/21/2681/2 3 Marshall Avenue
Sileby
Leicestershire
LE12 7QT

Proposed entrance porch to front of 
dwelling.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

04-Mar-2022 Sileby

P/21/1708/2 215 Cossington Road
Sileby
Leicestershire
LE12 7RR

Proposed demolition of garage and 
rear extensions and erection of two 
storey side extension, single storey 
front and side extension, single 
storey side and rear extension and 
detached garage.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

07-Mar-2022 Sileby

P/21/1017/2 Leicester City Football Club 
Training Ground (Former 
Park Hill Golf and Fishing 
Centre)
Seagrave

External amenity lighting, security 
measures, external directional 
signage and the provision of electric 
vehicle charging points 
(retrospective)

Full GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

28-Feb-2022 Sileby
Wreake Villages

P/22/0066/2 7 Pembroke Avenue
Syston
Leicestershire
LE7 2BZ

The erection of a single storey rear 
extension extending beyond the rear 
wall of the original house by  4.7m, 
with a maximum height of 3.5m, and 
height to the eaves of 3m

Householder 
Prior 
Notification

PRINOT, Prior approval from the 
Council is not required

03-Mar-2022 Syston East

P/21/2632/2 8 Holmdale Road
Syston
Leicestershire
LE7 2JN

Erection of single storey extension 
to rear of dwelling.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

09-Mar-2022 Syston East

Page 11 of 13

P
age 44



Application 
number

Application 
type

Location Proposal Decision Decision date Ward

P/22/0073/2 9 Albion Street
Syston
Leicestershire
LE7 2AA

Proposed 2-storey extension to side 
of existing dwelling

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

11-Mar-2022 Syston East

P/21/1711/2 100 Fosse Way
Syston
Leicestershire
LE7 1NG

Erection of two storey extension to 
front and rear, single storey 
extension to rear, detached annex to 
rear of house,

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

22-Feb-2022 Syston West

P/20/2381/2 Land at Roman Way
Syston
Leicester
LE7 1GE

Erection of a three-storey building, 
comprising of 6 no. apartments, and 
associated hard and soft 
landscaping works.

Full REF, Permission be refused for the 
following reasons:

24-Feb-2022 Syston West

P/21/2536/2 Pukka Pies Limited
The Half Croft
Syston
Leicestershire
LE7 1LD

Proposed construction of an infill 
extension under the existing canopy 
to create an additional freezer store 
and the removal of 1 no. disused 
loading dock

Full GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

25-Feb-2022 Syston West

P/21/2223/2 Land off Melton Road
Burton On The Wolds
LE12 5AL

Engineering works, drainage and 
associated landscaping to facilitate 
the access road relating to the 
development of up to 70 dwellings 
as approved under outline planning 
application ref. P/19/0041/2 and 
associated reserved matters

Full GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

18-Feb-2022 The Wolds

P/21/1631/2 Mushill Farm
East Road
Wymeswold
Leicestershire
LE12 6ST

Erection of hay and storage barn.Full GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

25-Feb-2022 The Wolds

Page 12 of 13

P
age 45



Application 
number

Application 
type

Location Proposal Decision Decision date Ward

P/21/2565/2 Knights Close, Earls Way
Thurmaston
Leicestershire
LE4 8EW

Removal of headframe and existing 
3no. antennas and associated 
steelwork, installation of 3no. 
integrated antennas and 
replacement headframe and 1no. 
GPS antenna.

Full GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

25-Feb-2022 Thurmaston

P/21/2231/2 7 and 7a Humberstone 
Lane
Thurmaston
LE4 8HJ

Two storey and roof extension to 
rear to form 4 No. flats and erection 
of single storey detached dwelling to 
rear..

Full REF, Permission be refused for the 
following reasons:

07-Mar-2022 Thurmaston

P/22/0077/2 18 Lonsdale Road
Thurmaston
Leicestershire
LE4 8JF

Retrospective application for display 
of 1 fascia sign, 1 projecting sign, 2 
x ACM panels, 1 window vinyl sign, 
and 4 x poster cases signs.

Advert 
Consent

GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

11-Mar-2022 Thurmaston

P/21/1309/2 2 Back Lane
Cossington
LE7 4UQ

Proposed single storey extension to 
rear of dwelling.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:

07-Mar-2022 Wreake Villages

Page 13 of 13

P
age 46


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	5 Planning Applications
	Charnwood Borough Council
	Plans Committee – Thursday 24 March 2022
	Index of Committee Items
	P.20.1437.2 - Flanders Close, Quorn

	6 List of Applications Determined under Delegated Powers

